
1

City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA

Tuesday, May 21, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall

amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning Bylaw

No. 8000.

(b)All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed

bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written

submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this

hearing. This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form part

of the public record. A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by Castanet.

(c)All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received

concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.The

correspondence and petitions received after May 7, 2013(date of notification) are

available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the

information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the

Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,

however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the



2

applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10841 - Heritage Designation Application No. HD13-0001 - 0874309
BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

5 - 10

To designate “Copeland House” as a municipal heritage building under Section
967 of the Local Government Act.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10840 - Heritage Revitalization Agreement Application No. HRA12-
0001 - 0874309 BC Ltd., 784 Elliot Avenue

11 - 63

This application proposes to restore the heritage house located at 784 Elliot
Avenue through the mechanism of a Heritage Revitalization Agreement (HRA).
The building on the site currently has 10 existing non-conforming suites. With
the HRA, the applicant is proposing to reconfigure the interior of the building
to construct 6 suites. In phase two of the plan, a building addition to contain 3
suites is proposed.

3.3 Bylaw No. 10746 - Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No.
OCP12-0010 - City of Kelowna, Miscellaneous Amendments to the 2030 Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500

64 - 80

To proceed with an amendment to the Official Community Plan to change the
Permanent Growth Boundary ("PGB") to incorporate UBC properties within the
PGB and to pursue other staff-initiated changes to land use designation
definitions, mapping notes, temporary use permits, riparian management area
language and policy to limit rural development outside the PGB.

4. Termination

4.1 Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b) The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.



3

(c) The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d) The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as
follows:

(i) The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s)
wishing to make representation at the Hearing.

 (ii) The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

 (iii) Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if
they have additional information they may address Council again after all
other members of the public have been heard a first time.

(e) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given
an opportunity to respond to any questions raised. The applicant is requested
to keep the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f) Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public
Hearing is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting,
unless for clarification.

(g) Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). Unless Council directs
that the Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall
state to the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note: Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g.
photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or
questions. The computer and ELMO document camera at the public podium
are available. Please ask staff for assistance prior to your item if required.



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 11, 2013 

RIM No. 1240-04 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HD13-0001 Owner: 
0874309 B.C. Ltd., Inc No. 
BC874309   

Address: 784 Elliot Avenue Applicant: Jackie Gorton 

Subject: Heritage Designation  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT City Council consider designation of the building located at Lot 3, District Lot 138, ODYD 
Plan 9360, 784 Elliot Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., commonly known as the “Copeland House” as a 
Municipal Heritage Site to Section 967 of the Local Government Act; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Heritage designation Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose   

To designate “Copeland House” as a municipal heritage building under Section 967 of the Local 
Government Act. 

3.0 Land Use Management   

The building is currently listed on the Municipal Heritage Register and is seeking protection 
through the Heritage Revitalization Agreement pursuant to Section 966 of the Local Government 
Act.  The applicant is committed to having the ‘Copeland House’ designated under Section 967 of 
the Local Government Act as a municipal building to ensure additional long-term protection for 
the structure. Staff fully endorse the preservation of City’s heritage assets to ensure the 
longevity of historically important sites.  

4.0 Heritage Designation Bylaw Background Information: 

The owners of the subject property have voluntarily requested that “Copeland House” be 
designated as a municipal heritage site and be called “the Copeland House”. The house is 
currently located on the Heritage Register which identifies it as having heritage significance; 

however the registry provides very limited protection.  

Once a property is designated, the owner must obtain a Heritage Alteration Permit to make 
alterations to the building exterior thereby protecting the heritage integrity. The City 

4



HD13-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

acknowledges that some changes to a protected heritage property are inevitable and a flexible 
approach is required when implementing reasonable and necessary changes while maintaining 
and protecting the building's noteworthy heritage characteristics. 

4.1 Heritage Value and Heritage Character: 

The house has value for its association with Robert Andrew (Bob) Copeland (1864-1955), married 
to Jane (Belle) Copeland, who built the house when he came to Kelowna in the spring of 1907. He 
had previously operated a hotel in Grenfell, Saskatchewan, for twenty years. He had served as an 
auxiliary in the Northwest Rebellion, part of the 'Grenfell Connection.' Copeland became a 
director of the Central Okanagan Land Company and served as an alderman from 1911 to 1916. 
Copeland Place was named for him. (767 Copeland Place was originally the barn and 789 
Copeland Place the ice house formerly associated with the historic place).  
 
In 1917 the Copeland’s left Kelowna and took up farming in the Lumby district. Bob was president 
of the United Farmers of British Columbia from 1919 to 1921. In 1942, the Copeland’s sold the 
farm and returned to retirement in Kelowna.  
 
The historic place also has value for changing its use with changes in the neighbourhood. It was 
apparently still a single residence in 1938, owned by W.R. Miller. In 1941 it was listed as a 
rooming house, owned by Jacob Vohl. During the acute housing shortage of WWII in 1942, owner 
Ethel Yegl (later Mrs. Ethel Bryan) remodelled it as eight apartments, with two rooms each. 
"Elliot Apartments" went through a series of at least fifteen owners between 1940 and 1965.  
 
The house is a good example of a Foursquare, with its square (or nearly square) plan and the 
medium-pitched hipped roof. The type is clearly legible, although its external details have been 
considerably modified over the years.  
 
Character defining elements: 

 Good example of a foursquare form with a medium- pitch hipped roof 

 Symmetrical fenestration, double-hung, wood sash windows 

 Mature landscaping around perimeter of the property 

 Uniform stucco finish 

4.2 Compatibility with the Official Community Plan and planning objectives: 

The Heritage Designation of the “Copeland House” is compatible with the policy direction of the 
Official Community Plan which promotes the conservation of heritage buildings listed in the 
Kelowna Heritage Register.  Specifically, the Official Community Plan Objective 9.2 seeks to 
identify and conserve heritage resources. By designating a site, the longevity of the heritage 
asset is maintained. 

4.3 Compatibility of Conservation with Lawful Uses of the Property and Adjoining Lands: 

The proposal is consistent with the designation as a residential property, however is not 
consistent with the single/two residential uses found in the area.  The property is zoned RU6 – 
Two Dwelling housing which only permits 2 units per site.  It is noteworthy that the land use of 
the area was established relatively recently, and the subject property has been used as 
apartments since the 1940’s.  The use of the property as a multi-unit residential building is 
seeking formalization through a Heritage Revitalization Agreement that is being considered by 
Council concurrent to this application. 
 

5



HD13-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

4.4  Condition and Economic Viability of the Property: 

The Kelowna Heritage Register indicates a number of elements have been added to the building.  
The building and grounds are currently undergoing restoration to bring the building back to a 
state worthy of designation. Once the restoration is complete, the units in the building will be 
rented.  

4.5 Possible Need for Financial or Other Support to Enable Appropriate Conservation: 

The applicant intends to apply for the City’s Heritage Tax Incentive Program if the accompanying 
Heritage Revitalization Agreement is approved by Council.  The building, however, will be 
completely rehabilitated negating the need for major financial assistance in the near future. 

5.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: April 10, 2013 

Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on January 10, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee supports the proposal under the Heritage 
Revitalization Agreement HRA12-0001 including variances, for 784 Elliot Avenue; 

AND THAT further consideration be given to restoring the verandah to an increased width 
from the front elevation so as to visually better represent the original condition; 

AND FURTHER THAT consideration also be given to modifying the roof access structure to 
lessen its visual impact on the widow's walk. 

ANECTODAL COMMENT:  

CHC recognized that what is now the front of the building was originally the back of the building 
and that there is an exchange of authenticity for restoration of architectural character. 
 

Designating a building provides a higher level of protection to Heritage properties. Given the 
investment the applicant is making in restoring the building, it is appropriate that the CHC 
would support a designation, although not captured in the meeting minutes. 

Report prepared by: 

      
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community 
Sustainability for the Director, Land Use Management 

 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Statement of Significance 

6



7



8



9



 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 3, 2013 

RIM No. 1240-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HRA12-0001 Owner: 
0874309 B.C. Ltd., Inc No. 
BC874309   

Address: 784 Elliot Avenue Applicant: Jackie Gorton 

Subject: Heritage Revitalization Agreement   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council consider a bylaw which would authorize the City of Kelowna to enter into a 
Heritage Revitalization Agreement for the property legally known as Lot 3, District Lot 138, ODYD 
Plan 9360 located on 784 Elliot Avenue, Kelowna, BC, in the form attached as Schedule “A” to 
the Report from the Land Use Management Department dated April 3, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization Bylaw be forwarded to a Public 
Hearing for further consideration;  
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Heritage Revitalization Agreement Authorization be considered 
subsequent to the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their 
satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to post a Landscape Performance Security bond 
with the City in the form of a "Letter of Credit" or cash in the amount of 125% of the estimated 
value of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper. 

2.0 Purpose  

This application proposes to restore the heritage house located at 784 Elliot Avenue through the 
mechanism of a Heritage Revitalization Agreement (HRA). The building on the site currently has 
10 existing non-conforming suites. With the HRA, the applicant is proposing to reconfigure the 
interior of the building to construct 6 suites. In phase two of the plan, a building addition to 
contain 3 suites is proposed.  
 
 

10



HRA12-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The OCP supports the use of Heritage Revitalization Agreements as a means of facilitating the 
adaptive re-use and continuing protection of heritage buildings. The proposal is compatible with 
the City of Kelowna’s Adaptive Re-use Guidelines for Residential Heritage Buildings. The subject 
property is included in the Heritage Register and through the HRA the applicant is seeking to 
formalize the existing non-conforming use.  
 
The proposal seeks to rehabilitate the existing heritage building in two phases.  The first phase 
seeks to bring the building back to a state that meets the life and safety standards of the BC 
Building Code.  Exterior repairs including roof, windows, removing metal decorative features and 
bringing the building back to its original form.  Phase two includes the addition of a front 
verandah and three units in a new building addition to the rear of the site. 
 
The “Heritage Re-adaptive Use Guidelines” are met in the following areas: 

 restoration plans respect the heritage character of the building; 

 removal of the embellishments which have been constructed on and around the building 
to bring the building back to its original form; 

 reduction of the number of residential units within the heritage building;   

 signatures of support were received from neighbours; 

 no other adaptive re-use exists in the neighbourhood; 

 signage is modest in size and is only proposed to identify the building; 

 the proposed addition in phase 2 respects the scale of the existing building and will not be 
visible from the street; 

 no additional screening is proposed. Mature trees located along the east property line 
have been pruned to ensure their longevity and the existing fencing will be repaired.  

 a new Victorian/Edwardian landscape is planned. 
 
The Guidelines are not met in the following areas: 

  parking regulations  
 

In order to facilitate the proposal, the applicant is seeking the following variances within the HRA 
framework: 

Phase 1 

 A reduction in the parking stalls provided from 9 spaces required to 7 spaces proposed. 

Phase 2 

 To reduce the rear yard set back for the proposed addition from 7.5m required to 2.3m 
proposed; 

 To legalize the resulting non-conforming side yard for the existing building to 
accommodate the addition; 

 To reduce the drive aisle width from 7.0m required to 6.0 m proposed; 
 To reduce in the total number of parking spaces provided from 13 spaces required to 10 

spaces provided; 
 To increase the allowable percentage of small parking spaces from 40% to 70% proposed.  

 
The significant extent of the restoration is a positive investment in this heritage asset and the 
variances and phase two addition are a fair trade-off to ensure the longevity of this building. The 
request to legitimize the west side yard from 2.3m to 1.6m stems from the fact that this building 
was constructed prior to current zoning regulations. The parking calculations are based on 
current Zoning Bylaw requirements and as this is a reuse of a residential site with limited access 

11



HRA12-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

and lot size, meeting the requirements is a challenge. Previously, there were more dwelling units 
with less parking spaces provided. Changes proposed to the site plan seek to relocate parking 
access from the front to the rear laneway which is anticipated to have a positive impact on the 
neighbourhood. A variance is sought to the rear and side yard to accommodate the proposed 
addition in phase two of the plan which was supported by the neighbours. Staff welcome the 
quality of the improvements to building and the anticipated impact on the neighbourhood as 
detailed in the explicit rationale.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property has had a varied past and the building had become debilitated and run 
down. Additional illegal living units were added to the basement and the exterior of the building 
was compromised with extensive metal features. The subject property was purchased by the 
applicant in the Spring of 2012, who immediately sought building permits for essential repairs to 
the building. Photo’s of the original site and subsequent improvements are attached. When 
complete the units will be for rent with the intent of attracting tenants that will appreciate the 
heritage building, the innovative sustainable mechanical upgrades, and the proximity to urban 
centres and active transportation. 

4.2 Project Description 

The project includes the complete restoration of the interior and exterior of the heritage 
building, and the redesign of the landscaping to enhance the unique historical character of the 
property. This will be accomplished by: 

 Removal of the carport;   

 Removal of the metal work attached to the fire escape; 

 Installation of new wrought iron garden fencing; 

 Refurbishment and replacement of soffits and fascia board; 

 Installation of new heritage design wood windows; 

 Repair to and replacement of roofing; 

 Stucco to be sympathetically brushed and cleaned, repaired and painted with 
Historical Collection colours from Benjamin Moore; 

 Updates to lighting fixtures; 

 Restoration of original interior staircase; 

 Update landscaping with a focus on returning to a simple Victorian Garden, with fruit 
trees around perimeter; 

 Incorporating an addition to the rear of the property containing 3 units.  The aim is to 
allow spacious units in keeping with the needs and facilities of the tenants. 

 
The total restoration of Copeland House will be completed in 2 phases.  
 
Phase 1 will predominantly focus on the reversal of decay within the property and has a strong 
interior focus with the exception of the necessary roof and stucco repair, and repainting of the 
building. The plan includes upgrading all internal electrical and plumbing, relocating aerial 
cables underground, reducing the number of units within the building from 12 (10 legal and 2 
illegal) to 6, installing new updated kitchens and bathrooms, and repairing and/or replacing 
hardwood flooring to main areas. These improvements have been underway for a number of 
months with all units in the building vacant.  
 

12



HRA12-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

The installation of garden beds, predominantly herbaceous perennials and roses, will occur. A 
yew hedge will be planted along the south perimeter along the wrought iron fence to provide 
privacy for tenants in the front garden. The border on both sides of the pathway will be planted 
with lavender providing sweet scents when approaching the front entrance. 
 
Phase 2 will be completed within 3 – 5 years, and will encompass restoring the original verandah 
across the front of the building and constructing an addition with three units on the rear of the 
site. The proposed addition is anticipated to emulate the style and character of the original 
building with simple lines and a distinct square form. Replacing the vinyl windows with heritage 
style wood windows is expected to be occur throughout both phases. The garden will be further 
developed as it matures organically into its eventual design. Fencing exists along the east and 
west perimeter and will be upgraded to rod iron. 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Elliot Avenue between Richter Street and 
Ethel Street. The neighbourhood is generally characterized by single detached residential 
dwellings however, the building is a legal non-conforming containing 10 apartments. Both the 
Downtown and Capri urban centers are within walking distance of the dwelling.  The adjoining 
neighbourhod zones and uses are: 

 
Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

East RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

West RU6 – Two-Dwelling Housing Residential 

 
4.4  Subject Property:   784 Elliot Avenue 

  
 

13



HRA12-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

4.5 Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone as follows:   

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 zone requirements 

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 1,055 m2 400 m2 

Lot Width   21.03 m 13 m 

Lot Depth 50 m 30 m 

PHASE ONE 

Development Regulations for existing Heritage Building 

Site Coverage (buildings) 16.5 % 40 % 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveway and parking) 

30.5 % 50 % 

Height   13.5m  9.5m / 2 ½ storey 

Front Yard 16.6 m  4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 1.6 m   2.3 m (2– 2 ½ storey) 

Side Yard (east)  7.5 m 2.3 m ( 2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Rear Yard 18.7 m   7.5m  (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 

  

Total provided: 7  stalls   

1 x1 bdrm units, 4 x 2 bdrm 
units, and 1 bachelor unit 

 Total required: 9 spaces  

Bicycle parking 

  

Total provided:  7 

Total number of units: 6 
Class I: 0.5 per dwelling unit 

Class II: 0.1 per dwelling unit 

Total required:   4 

PHASE TWO 

Development Regulations for proposed Addition (inclusive of Phase 1) 

Site Coverage (buildings)  27.5 % 40 % 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveway and parking) 

46.5 % 50 % 

Height  9.2m   9.5m / 2 ½ storey 

Side Yard (west) 2.4 m  2.3 m (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Side Yard (east)   11 m 2.3m (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

Rear Yard 2.3 m  7.5m  (2 - 2 ½ storey) 

14



HRA12-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

PHASE TWO 

Development Regulations for proposed Addition  

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 

  

Total provided: 10 stalls  

1 bdrm units: 4 

2 bdrm units :4 

Bachelor unit: 1 

  Total required: 13 stalls  

Bicycle parking 

 

Total provided: 7 

Total number of units: 9 

Class I: 0.5 per dwelling unit 

Class II: 0.1 per dwelling unit 

Total required: 6    

Signage    Meets requirements 
Non-illuminated nameplate 

not exceeding 2.5 sq.ft. 

  Variance granted in May 2009 for height of building with widows walk. 
  Legal non-conforming side yard set back. 

Variances Sought: 

 To reduce the rear yard set back for the proposed addition from 7.5m required to 2.3m 
provided. 

 &  A reduction in the required parking is sought for both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the project.   
 
4.6 Heritage Register 

 
Character defining elements: 
 
The accompanying documents provide a good history of the building. Copeland House was a 
family home to the original builder Robert Andrew Copeland, and his wife Jane, who for 10 years, 
resided in this traditional Foursquare House. Acting as a Director of the Central Okanagan Land 
Company and an Alderman of Kelowna from 1911 to 1916, Robert Copeland had previously been 
an Hotelier in Saskatchewan for 20 years.  
 
Ironically, 100 years later, the applicants have taken over the building who have been Hoteliers 
for over 20 years. When Bob Copeland moved to Lumby to buy a farm he sold the property to his 
brother and his wife who raised 14 children in the home. In 1941 Copeland House changed from 
being a Single Family Home to a rooming house, and became multi family lodging in 1942 when it 
was redesigned to provide 8 apartments.  
 
With respect to Robert Andrew Copeland, and his commitment to Kelowna in those early days as 
the city became incorporated, Copeland Place was named after him. 767 Copeland Place was the 
original barn for Copeland House, and 789 Copeland Place was the ice house.  
 
To honour his achievements the applicant is returning the house back to its original name of 
“Copeland House”, and the restored Heritage Apartment Building will be known as “Copeland 
House Heritage Apartments”. 

 

15



HRA12-0001 – Page 7 

 
 

5.0 CURRENT DEVELOPMENT POLICY 

5.1  Heritage Policies1 

Objective 9.2 Identify and conserve heritage resources. No character guidelines exist for this 
property as it is located outside of the conservation areas and unique as a four square 
architectural style.  
 
5.2  Heritage Conservation Area - Objectives: 2 

•  Encourage new development, additions and renovations to existing development which are 
    compatible with the form and character of the existing context; 
•  Ensure that change to buildings and streetscapes will be undertaken in ways which offer 
    continuity of the ‘sense-of-place’ for neighbours, the broader community; and 
•  Provide historical interest for visitors through context sensitive development. 

5.3 Adaptive Re-use Guidelines 
 

After consideration has been given to location, each adaptive re-use proposal must be assessed 
on its own merits as to whether the proposal would be appropriate within the context of the 
heritage building, the surrounding neighbourhood and adjacent property characteristics. In this 
regard, the following factors should be considered: 

 
5.3.1 Neighbourhood Resident Concerns 

The concerns of neighbouring property owners should be considered. Identifying 
and, wherever possible, resolving these issues when developing the terms and 
conditions specific to an application is important. Applicants are encouraged to 
discuss their proposed adaptive reuse with neighbouring property owners.  
Signatures of support from the surrounding neighbourhood have be supplied.  
 

5.3.2 Residential Component 

A residential component (secondary suite, principal dwelling, etc.) should be 
provided in conjunction with a non-residential use in order to minimize impacts on 
the residential character of a neighbourhood. For security purposes, incorporating 
a residential component is particularly important where a high concentration of 
adaptive re-uses occurs along a particular block. The whole project is residential 
and no commercial or other uses are being considered. 
 

5.3.3 Concentration of Adaptive Re-Uses 
Careful consideration must be given to avoid a concentration of adaptive re-uses in 
any given area. In this regard, consideration should be given to maintaining the 
existing neighbourhood character. In addition, consideration should be given to 
whether or not permitting an adaptive re-use or a concentration of adaptive re-
uses would limit the ability to redevelop the area to higher density uses supported 
in the OCP.  The adaptive re-use is the reconfiguration of the interior units and 
the addition to the rear of the building in phase two.  

 
 
 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter  9; Objective 9.2  Policy .4 
2 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter 16 

16



HRA12-0001 – Page 8 

 
 

5.3.4 Design Standards 

Any heritage building restorations, renovations or alterations must respect the 
heritage character of the building and its surrounding area. As provided in the 
accompanying documentation the intent of the proposal is to be sustainable and 
return the building back to its original simple form. The proposed addition for 
phase two has been kept simple in its form and massing to align with the original 
four square design.  Elements such as the windows, railing from the widows walk, 
and roof detailing are reflected in the new additional.  
 

5.3.5 Scale 

The size and intensity of the adaptive re-use component should be compatible 
with the surrounding neighbourhood and able to be readily accommodated within 
an existing heritage building. The requirements of a specific use, and the available 
floor area in the existing building, will limit the extent and nature of the adaptive 
re-use proposal. It is recommended that the number of employees not exceed four 
non-resident employees at any given time for adaptive re-uses along major roads 
and two non-resident employees at any given time for adaptive re-uses along local 
roads. In addition to this, it is recommended that, as a guideline, the non-
residential floor area not exceed 85 m2 (915 sq. ft.) for adaptive re-uses along 
major roads and 60 m2 (645 sq. ft.) for adaptive re-uses along local roads. Given 
that the building has been used as a 10 unit apartment, the proposal to update 
and reconfigure the interior dwellings and to reduce the overall number of units 
on the property to 9 is well within the scale of the original density.  

 
5.3.6 Signage 

Signage should be limited to one non-illuminated nameplate not to exceed 2.5 
square feet in area and shall be placed within, flat against or hanging from the 
dwelling unit. Along major roads, signs of this size and dimension may be hung 
from a free standing post. Signage is proposed for identification purposes only. 

 
5.3.7 Parking / Access 

Consideration must be given to on-site parking, access and traffic generation 
associated with adaptive re-use proposals. In order to limit the impact on adjacent 
properties, the required number of on-site parking spaces should conform to the 
Parking Schedule of the Zoning Bylaw. Access to parking is being relocated off the 
alley to the north of the site. The number of required parking stall is being varied 
to allow only one stall per suite.  It is expected that the central location of the 
site will allow for alternative modes of transportation and less reliance on the 
automobile. Incidentally, the site originally provided more units and less parking 
than is being proposed. 
 

5.3.8 Hours of Operation 

No generation of vehicular traffic or parking of vehicles in excess of that permitted 
for the zone in which the adaptive re-use is located should be permitted during 
non-regular working hours. Generally, working hours should be limited to daytime 
hours, Monday through Friday.  Non-applicable given that the entire building is 
remaining residential. 

 

17



HRA12-0001 – Page 9 

 
 

5.3.9 Screening 

Screening helps lessen the impact of an adaptive re-use in a residential area. In 
this regard, outdoor storage and parking areas associated with an adaptive re-use 
should be well screened with fencing and landscaping which are compatible in 
design with the heritage building and which form a year round dense screen.  No 
screening is proposed with the exception of the fencing and mature trees found 
on the site.  
 

6.0  Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comment for phase 1.  

 Drawings are required for the phase 2 prior to comment (new building). No comments 
were provided with the exception of the need for a full plan check review when revised 
drawings were submitted. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached.  

6.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.3 Interior Health Authority 

The RCMP have no comments related to this application. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: December 18, 2012 
Application Refinement:  March 1, 2013 

7.1   Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on January 10, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee supports the proposal under the Heritage 
Revitalization Agreement HRA12-0001 including variances, for 784 Elliot Avenue; 

AND THAT further consideration be given to restoring the verandah to an increased width 
from the front elevation so as to visually better represent the original condition; 

AND FURTHER THAT consideration also be given to modifying the roof access structure to 
lessen its visual impact on the widow's walk. 

ANECTODAL COMMENT:  

CHC recognized that what is now the front of the building was originally the back of the 
building and that there is an exchange of authenticity for restoration of architectural 
character.   

 

18



HRA12-0001 – Page 10 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community 
Sustainability  

 
  

Attachments:  

Historic photos 
Neighbourhood context 
Existing building conditions 
Existing Site Plan 
Elevations - Phase 1  
Interior floor plans – Phase 1 
Photographic refurbishment plan 
Landscape plan – Phase 1 
Colour board 
Site Plan – Phase 2 
Elevations – Phase 2 
Colour Rendering – Phase 2 
Landscape Plan – Phase 2 
Rationale  
Statement of Significance 
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 30, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

1200-30 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Long Range Planning Manager 

Subject: 
 

OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500 – Miscellaneous Amendments (Bylaw 10746) 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Long Range Planning Manager 
dated April 30, 2013 with respect to proposed amendments to OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10746 being OCP12-0010 – Miscellaneous Amendments to Kelowna 2030 
Official Community Plan be forwarded for amendment at first reading as outlined in the 
Report of the Long Range Planning Manager dated April 30, 2013; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT after First Reading Council forward OCP Amendment Bylaw 10746 to 
Public Hearing. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To provide Council with an update on the public and stakeholder consultation related to OCP 
Amendment Bylaw 10746, including comments from the Agricultural Land Commission, and to 
amend the bylaw at first reading prior to referring the bylaw to Public Hearing. 
 
Background: 
 
At the Council Meeting of December 3, 2012 the following resolution was adopted: 
 

THAT Council receives for information, the report from the Long Range Planning 
Manager, dated November 23, 2012 with respect to proposed amendments to the 
Kelowna 2030 Bylaw 10500; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10746 being OCP12-0010 – Miscellaneous Amendments to the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT after 1st reading, Council directs staff to forward OCP Amendment Bylaw 
No. 10746, being an amendment to Bylaw No. 10500 Kelowna 2030 – Official 

74



Community Plan, to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for comments as per Local 
Government Act, Section 882(3)(c); 
 
AND THAT Council directs staff to pursue the consultation process outlined in the 
report from the Long Range Planning Manager dated November 23, 2012 and report 
back to Council prior to scheduling OCP Bylaw No. 10746 to a Public Hearing; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council directs staff to mail out a Public Hearing Notice to the 
owners of parcels impacted by the subdivision of lands outside the Permanent Growth 
Boundary amendment. (SR# 244334) 
 

In a response from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) dated February 5, 2013 (attached), 
the ALC has indicated a position of non-support of the portion of the bylaw proposed to 
amend the Permanent Growth Boundary (PGB) and to change the land use designation from 
Resource Protection (REP) to Rural / Agricultural (RUAG) for those lands owned by UBC 
(former Tutt Ranch). 
 
The proposed change to the Rural / Agricultural (RUAG) designation from the Resource 
Protection Area designation was at the request of UBC.  There is no language in the OCP that 
suggests a higher opportunity for development that would be supported under the Rural / 
Agricultural versus the Resource Protection Area designation.  In fact, both designations 
specify that land will not be supported for exclusion from the ALR. 
 
It is staffs’ contention that the return to a RUAG designation from the 2020 OCP would not 
grant UBC any rights that do not exist under the existing Resource Protection Area (REP) 
designation in the 2030 OCP.  Given the ALC authority over land use approvals and the 
relevance of the City’s OCP, staff are recommending the amendment of Bylaw 10746 to 
remove the proposed change to add the RUAG designation on UBC lands as recommended by 
the ALC. 
 
With respect to the ALC recommendation on the proposed change to amend the Permanent 
Growth Boundary (PGB) to include UBC owned lands within the PGB, it is noted that the ALC 
had similar comments with respect to the PGB prior to the Public Hearing on the adoption of 
the OCP in May 2011.  At that time the City agreed to the ALC request to amend the PGB to 
locate ALR lands outside the PGB.  However, it is staffs’ position that the PGB is a “Mapping 
Note” and not a land use designation and therefore outside the purview of the ALC.  It is 
recommended that that portion of Bylaw 10746 to change the PGB be retained.  The lands in 
question would remain designated as Resource Protection Area (REP) and in the ALR, but be 
within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 
 
The change in land use designation should be removed from Bylaw 10746 pending more 
detailed work on long term planning for the area as recommended by the ALC.  City staff, in 
conjunction with UBC, will engage Council, the ALC and the community at the appropriate 
time regarding other possible University related uses on the subject lands once more detailed 
planning is complete. 
 
  

75



Internal Circulation: 
 
Acting General Manager of Community Sustainability 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
 
Local Government Act Part 26: Division 2 – Official Community Plans, Sections 875 – 882. 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
 
Local Government Act Section 882(3) specifies that after first reading (and prior to Public 
Hearing) of an Official Community Plan bylaw the local government must, in sequence; 
consider the plan in conjunctions with its financial plan and any waste management plan 
applicable.  The local government must also refer the plan to the Agricultural Land 
Commission (ALC) for comment if the plan applies to land in an agricultural land reserve 
established under the Agricultural Land Commission Act. 
 
Existing Policy: 
 
Kelowna OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500. 
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
As required under the Local Government Act Section 978 (1), public consultation was 
conducted, as per Council’s direction, be advertising in a local newspaper, posting 
information on the city website and notification through e-subscribe, with contact 
information for the Long Range Planning Manager to field inquiries and comments. There were 
no comments or submissions received from the public during or after that time frame. 
 
OCP Amendment Bylaw 10746 was also referred to the ALC on December 4, 2012 as required 
by the LGA Section 882(3).  The ALC has indicated a position of non-support of the portion of 
the bylaw proposed to amend the Permanent Growth Boundary and to change the land use 
designation from Resource Protection Area (REP) to Rural / Agricultural (RUAG) for those 
lands owned by UBC (former Tutt Ranch).  The ALC recommends that those portions of the 
bylaw be set aside until the City, UBC and ALC have engaged in long term planning for the 
area.  The full ALC response is outlined in their letter of February 5, 2013 (attached). 
 
Communications Comments: 
 
Consultation with the public was conducted as per Local Government Act Section 879(1), with 
the results of that consultation being the subject of this report. 
 
Council directed that staff mail out a Public Hearing notice to the owners of parcels impacted 
by the subdivision of land outside the Permanent Growth Boundary amendment.  Staff 
propose to provide that notification as part of the formal Public Hearing process. 
 
  

76



Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
Gary Stephen, Long Range Planning Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion: 
 
Shelley Gambacort, Acting Director of Policy and Planning                 
 
 
cc: Acting General Manager of Community Sustainability 
 
 

  

77



78



79


	Agenda
	3.1 HD13-0001 Elliot Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 hd13-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 HRA12-0001 784 Elliot Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 hra12-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500, Miscellaneous Amendments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 2013-04-30 RTC OCP Amendment - Supplementalv4.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 2013-02-05 ALC Response Letter.pdf
	Back to Agenda


